
1 Park and Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting                       Wednesday, September 14, 2011 

  
 

City of Inver Grove Heights Minutes of the Proceedings 
 Of The Park and Recreation Advisory Commission 

Wednesday, September 14, 2011 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER:   
 
Vice Chair Dennis Schueller called the September 14, 2011 Park and Recreation Advisory Commission Meeting 
to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Vice Chair Dennis Schueller:  Commissioners:   Stan Johnson, Jim Huffman, Marty Silvi, Chris 
Solberg, and Desta Meyer 
Parks and Recreation Director Eric Carlson 
Absent:  Chair Al Eiden;  Commissioners:  Joe Boehmer and Willie Krech; Recording Clerk Sheri Yourczek 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS: 
 
None 
 
4.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
   
A.  You can find information regarding the City of Inver Grove Heights by visiting our Web Site at: 
 www.invergroveheights.org 
B.  The next Park and Recreation Advisory Commission Meeting will be on Wednesday, October 12,     

2011.  Regular meeting 7:00 p.m. 
 
5.  CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A.  Approval of Agenda 
B. Approval of Minutes of June 8, 2011 
 
Motion by Commissioner Silvi, seconded by Commissioner Solberg, to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Ayes:  6 
Nays:  0 Motion carried. 
 
6.  PUBLIC COMMENT: 
  
None 
 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
8.  REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
A.  Consider Construction of Scenic Overlook Near the Rock Island Swing Bridge 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Eric Carlson stated Mark Borgwardt, Parks Superintendent, will speak regarding 
this item. 



2 Park and Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting                       Wednesday, September 14, 2011 

  
 

Mark Borgwardt, Parks Superintendent, stated this proposal is to build an overlook deck at the end of the old 
railroad bed that went over top of the bridge.  The proposal is to build a deck that would hang over a steep slope.   
Two proposals were received for the project.  One was from Woods Construction and Carpentry Inc. for 
$35,200.00.  The second was from Tree Trust Landscape Services for $40,906.19.  Jeff from SEH gave us a 
proposal that was modeled after a park near Hudson, Wisconsin.  We received the engineering drawings for that 
and modified them as we saw fit for our area and sent that out for two quotes as stated.  We are asking that you 
recommend Woods Construction to build that. They stated they could get this installed this fall.  The funding 
will be from $60,000 remaining from the Rock Island Swing Bridge project that the City has already approved.  
The suggestion is to use the contingency of $4,800 to provide access to the job site and potential soil 
corrections.  Our recommendation is to use $40,000 of these remaining RISB (Rock Island Swing Bridge) 
project funds to build the RISB scenic overlook. 
 
Commissioner Silvi asked what the life span was of this project? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt responded they will use heavy duty timbers so it would be about 30 to 40 years. 
 
Director Carlson stated the old railroad that came off the top of the bridge splits into a “Y”.  One goes toward 
River Road, the other toward 66th Street.  We own everything up to the “Y” and half in either direction.  We are 
working with the property owner who owns the other half to acquire that other half so we can construct a trail.  
That trail is part of the 66th Street re-construction project.  One that project is completed, and the trails are 
constructed, it will lead right up to this overlook. 
 
Commissioner Solberg asked if they looked into maintenance free decking as opposed to treated. 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt said they did not.  They went off the materials at Willow River State Park.  They 
were impressed with that. 
 
Director Carlson stated some of the materials used would be similar to that used for the Rock Island Swing 
Bridge project.  It is designed to mimic what the old trestle used to look like when it was in place.  People will 
get a sense that it looks like a railroad trestle. 
 
Commissioner Huffman asked if as it ages, will it look like the material on the bridge? 
 
Director Carlson responded yes it will. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Huffman to go with Woods Construction to get the platform built.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Johnson. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller asked how high this was off the ground? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt responded about 11 feet, 9 inches.  It has a very substantial railing.  It meets all City 
codes.   
 
Vice Chair Schueller asked how far is it from the water? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt responded it is 32 feet 8 inches.  It wouldn’t be to the water, it would be to the bank.  
To the river itself, it is probably about 50 feet. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller asked what the view is like from here? 
Superintendent Borgwardt stated when you stand at the deck you will be looking to the north of the bridge.   
 
Director Carlson commented you will be at the same elevation as the bridge itself. 



3 Park and Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting                       Wednesday, September 14, 2011 

  
 

Vice Chair Schueller asked if there were plans to put anything on this platform?  Benches? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt responded not at this time. 
 
Commissioner Meyer asked how high the railings were?  Would they be like those on the bridge?  There is 
$60,000 left from the bridge project.  If this is approved, there is $20,000 left.  Will that need to be used for 
something else?  Is there a timeframe for its use? 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt responded they looked into using the same railing as on the bridge, but it was highly 
expensive.  He asked the contractors to mimic what is on the bridge in treated timber.  It will have the same look 
and gaps as the real railing. 
 
Director Carlson responded to the questions about the money that was left over from the project.   Due to the 
project not being as expensive as they thought it would be, this proposal is a way to use those remaining funds. 
 
Commissioner Silvi stated we have never discussed this before.  What benefit is this beyond the bridge?  It 
doesn’t overlook anything that the present bridge doesn’t?  It is hard for him to envision this as he hasn’t been 
on the bridge because it is too far to walk.  He questioned whether it is worth spending the money to have 
another overlook since we have the bridge itself. 
 
Director Carlson stated we envisioned an overlook as part of the overall Master Plan.  This helps us do a decent 
job of completing the Master Plan.  Everything will be completed on the South side of the Master Plan.  This has 
a different view of the area other than the bridge itself.  The Master Plan envisioned that the trains went on both 
levels of this.  Through interpretive displays we hope to let people know of that fact, especially those who didn’t 
see it that way back then.  Our hope is that they can interpret the trains coming off that.  By putting people in the 
same elevation as those trains came off the bridge, they will have a better understanding of why this helped 
grow Inver Grove Heights. 
 
Commissioner Silvi asked if this money has to be used here.  Could it be used to help defray the cost of moving 
the City Hall? 
 
Director Carlson stated the City Council can choose how to use this, or not use it at all. 
 
Commissioner Huffman commented that this overlook will help tell the story.  He suggested they get a motor 
scooter to take Commissioner Silvi there. 
 
Commissioner Silvi can’t see where this is adding that much to the overall bridge experience.  He could see the 
money being used elsewhere. 
 
Commissioner Meyer can remember seeing information on where the potential overlook would be at the ribbon 
cutting ceremony.  It would be interesting to look down and give the broader look of the shoreline.  Her children 
wanted to walk through the grass to look down, so she can see where people would be interested in that.  She 
agreed with Commissioner Silvi in that this seems a little expensive if it’s only treated lumber. 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt stated this is a way for those that don’t want to use the bridge, to still see the bridge 
and the view.  This will be ADA accessible.  
 
Director Carlson wanted to address the cost and funding.  Let’s assume the Rock Island Swing Bridge project 
was done and we were right at zero for any money remaining for the project.  We would still have brought this 
project before the Commission as it’s still a part of the Master Plan.  We would have had to use the Park 
Acquisition Funds 100% to pay for the project.  Because there are remaining funds for the project we are 
recommending those funds for the project. 



4 Park and Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting                       Wednesday, September 14, 2011 

  
 

Ayes:  5 
Nays:  1 (Silvi)   Motion carried. 
 
Director Carlson stated this will go before the City Council on September 26th. 
 
B.  Consider Proposal to Sponsor a Painting Project for the Arbor Point Tunnel 
 
Director Carlson stated Parks Superintendent Mark Borgwardt will be speaking regarding this item.  He will be 
introducing Girl Scout Catherine Link to present this as a Girl Scout project. 
 
Parks Superintendent Mark Borgwardt stated this item is regarding the use of the College Trail tunnel as an 
experiment in trying to reduce graffiti and vandalism in the tunnel.  The park system has three tunnels, the North 
Valley/South Valley tunnel, the Highway 52 tunnel south of Upper 55th Street, and this tunnel off College Trail.  
Every year we paint the tunnels at least four, five, or even six times at approximately $300.00 a time.  There is 
money allotted for this in the Parks budget.  Sometimes they exhaust it.  Sometimes they spend $2,500.00 to 
paint those tunnels.  Every time we paint it, it is like we are giving them a new palette to present their 
frustrations with society.  The proposal before you is by Catherine Link, a local resident and Girl Scout.  She 
emailed him and through some internet research she has a project for you to take a look at.  There are studies 
that have been done in different urban park settings that came to the conclusion that if you provide a creative 
outlet for graffiti artists, such as putting nice artwork up, it deters people from using the wall to do destructive 
obscene vandalism.  She has a proposal for you to use the College Trail tunnel as a site for a park contest.  She 
would like to discuss this proposal with you further.  
 
Catherine Link wanted to thank them for taking the time with this proposal.  She thinks that having art on the 
walls of the tunnel will reduce graffiti.  She did some research and found that having art on the walls will reduce 
the amount of graffiti.  The research that was done was in Philadelphia and Subways in England.  The art in the 
tunnel will be something pretty to look at.  Having a contest will give those a way to channel their inner artist 
instead of doing graffiti.  Holding a contest yearly will keep the kids involved and keep their artwork in the 
tunnels new.  The City might save some money.  By doing this, maybe the tunnel would only have to be 
repainted once a year instead of three or four times. 
 
Commissioner Huffman asked if they had any examples. 
 
Ms. Link showed a few photos.    
 
Superintendent Borgwardt stated there is a lot of bad stuff in those tunnels.  She has a sketch of possible 
artwork.  There can be nature scenes, the sunset, or even a Timberwolf. 
 
Ms. Link suggested a theme for the project named a Walk on the Wild Side.  All the entries could include native 
Minnesota animals and vegetation. 
 
Commissioner Huffman has found that once something is painted usually they won’t be painted over. 
 
Commissioner Silvi felt this was a worthwhile project.  He congratulated them for bringing this before them.  He 
asked if this washes off? 
 
Ms. Link responded it does.  
 
Superintendent Borgwardt stated they can see how this goes in the College Trail tunnel.  If this works they can 
expand this program to the other tunnels. 
 



5 Park and Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting                       Wednesday, September 14, 2011 

  
 

Commissioner Huffman asked if her signature would be on this mural?  He would like to see her name on this 
project so people know who did it. 
 
Superintendent Borgwardt stated there will be a need for a panel to help judge.  Whoever wins the contest will 
paint the tunnel.  Maybe we can get local art teachers, some of the Commission here, and maybe even himself to 
help judge it.   
 
Commissioner Huffman asked about getting Brian Stewart involved.  He created the design on their lapel pins. 
 
Director Carlson asked how many different murals can be in the tunnel? 
 
Ms. Link responded one side has six panels, the other side has seven.  There would be 12 panels to paint as she 
would like to paint one herself. 
 
Commissioner Meyer asked if Catherine had contacted the Middle School or High School to publicize this? 
How will you get entries? 
 
Ms. Link responded she has emailed the schools and has not received a response yet.  She will contact them 
again.  She was planning on advertising through the schools art classes.   
 
Commissioner Meyer asked who will supervise this?  What about the entries and the timelines? 
 
Ms. Link responded she has already done most of that.  She has a rough draft of the rules as well as a timeline. 
 
Commissioner Huffman asked what rank she is in the scouts? 
 
Ms. Link responded she is a Cadet in the seventh grade. 
 
Commissioner Solberg asked when she wanted to start this?  This fall? 
 
Ms. Link was hoping to do this in the fall, maybe early November.  She showed the Commission a timeline she 
had created for the project. 
 
Commissioner Meyer thought it may be more realistic to paint in the spring.  The fall could be more cold and 
difficult to paint in.  This would also give you more time. 
 
Commissioner Johnson felt if the weather was good this fall, it should be fine to start, if not wait till spring.  She 
can use her own discretion on when to begin. 
 
Commissioner Solberg asked how long the chalk lasted?  He would hate to have all that work done in the fall 
only to be gone by spring. 
  
Motion by Commissioner Silvi to approve from the Parks Division budget the sum of $500.00 to begin the 
art program.   Seconded by Commissioner Johnson. 
 
Commissioner Solberg thanked her for coming in here.  She did a wonderful job of doing this.  It will be a great 
addition to our City.  She did a great job. 
Director Carlson mentioned we may want to consider somehow contacting people that live in the neighborhood 
and let them know that this is something we are contemplating.  When we make changes to things we should get 
neighborhood feedback.  To ensure this is a positive thing, we may want to engage the neighborhood in this.  He 
also stated it has to go before the City Council for their review and approval as well.  He asked Ms. Link if this 
was part of a process to earn a badge?  



6 Park and Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting                       Wednesday, September 14, 2011 

  
 

Ms. Link responded it is.  It would be her Silver Award for Community Service badge. 
 
Commissioner Silvi asked if he should revise his motion to recommend that the City Council approve the 
money from the Park Fund to cover the cost of the program.  Commissioner Johnson seconded the 
amendment. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller commented that he has traveled many places and has seen several murals in buildings and 
parks.  He thinks it really adds to the parks itself and it does avoid the graffiti that you see.  This is a great idea 
and he appreciated that. 
 
Director Carlson stated this would be on the City Council’s Agenda on Monday, September 26th. 
 
Ayes:  6 
Nays:  0 Motion carried. 
 
9.  ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATIONS: 
 
A.  Department Happenings 
 
Director Carlson stated he had nothing specifically to comment on.  He will stand by for any questions the 
Commission may have. 
 
Commissioner Solberg noticed on the Golf Course we had financials and information through July.  How is it 
doing through August? 
 
Director Carlson stated the Golf Courses got off to a late start this golf season due to the weather.  The course is 
doing okay.  They just aerated the greens in the last few days.  They will be starting the second phase of the four 
phase cart path project next week.  The course is doing the best it can considering the circumstances. 
 
Commissioner Silvi commented it was really nice seeing the golf course marketing change now that they are 
advertising in newspapers and other media.  It seems like it has made a difference. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller stated we paid for an assessment of this course.  It would be nice to get a detailed report 
from either City Staff or Golf Course Manager Al McMurchie letting us know what has been tried from the 
information that was sent to us from that assessment.  It would also be nice to know what wasn’t done and why.  
He is sure some suggestions were tried, and some were not.   It would be nice to know exactly what was 
successful and what hasn’t been, what hasn’t been tried and why.  It would be helpful at a future meeting to 
have a report back to us. 
 
Commissioner Silvi agreed that it would be nice to see how the performance there has changed since then. 
 
10.  COMMISSION COMMENTS: 
 
Commissioner Huffman stated it was nice to be back.  He hopes they can proceed and get things done down by 
the Rock Island Swing Bridge. 
 
Commissioner Silvi commented there was some discussion awhile back with determining what is a handicapped 
vehicle and what wasn’t on park property.  Have we done anything further on that? 
 
Director Carlson responded they are working on a policy that will be brought before this Commission and the 
City Council.  It is called Other Power Mobility Devices.  We are working with the City Attorney’s office and 



7 Park and Rec. Advisory Commission Meeting                       Wednesday, September 14, 2011 

  
 

our ADA Consultant on the development of a policy so that it is consistent with state and federal law.  We will 
let you know once that is ready. 
 
Commissioner Solberg asked if other Cities would be going through the same thing? 
 
Director Carlson stated others are.  They are all working on their own policies.  Because of the laws being so 
new, there are not a lot of examples out there. 
 
Commissioner Johnson had no comment. 
 
Commissioner Solberg stated he has come to end each meeting with a quote.  Tonight’s quote comes from the 
Father of our National Parks, John Muir who said “whenever you walk with nature, one receives far more than 
he seeks”.  Because of that he encourages everyone to go out and explore our parks or a park somewhere and 
find out if that quote is actually correct. 
 
Commissioner Meyer had no comment. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller stated while the maps of our parks are great, a citizen of Inver Grove Heights brought up 
the fact that when one looks at the map of the parks they have trouble finding the information that states “you 
are here”.  Do you have that information on the maps? 
 
Director Carlson felt he was referring to the way finding maps around Inver Grove Heights.  Ultimately the map 
was not designed with a “you are here” listing on it.  We would have had to make 40 different maps to show 
that.  To keep costs down, we made one map with numbers on them.  The number on the top of the map tells 
you where you are on the map.  He said they have heard that comment from a few different people though.  
Maybe we need to put information on how to interpret the signs and the maps. 
 
Vice Chair Schueller congratulated all the people who planned, organized, and implemented Inver Grove 
Heights Days.  He felt things went very well.  It was a great event.  Everyone that was involved in planning it 
did a great job. 
 
Commissioner Solberg stated the Fireworks were spectacular. 
 
Director Carlson stated Inver Grove Heights Days is a volunteer based group of people who do not work for the 
City.  Those folks meet regularly to plan the different events that make up Inver Grove Heights Days.  The City 
plays a small role in supporting this.  This is not a City organized program.  It’s all volunteers that do all that 
work. 
 
Commissioner Huffman thanked the Dakota County Historical Society for welcoming us into the City of Inver 
Grove Heights.  They have never had a presence in our City.  Through the sale of our lapel pins, it will help pay 
to put up interpretive signs down by Heritage Village Park.  It was a combined effort from Director Carlson and 
Chad Roberts the Director of the Historical Society, as well as himself working together.   
 
11.  ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Commissioner Solberg, seconded by Commissioner Silvi, to adjourn the meeting at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Ayes:  6 
Nays:  0 Motion carried. 


